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UNITED STATES DISTRICT CCURT A{(l'i‘ﬁ.\ R ;

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

Oakland HEADQUARTERS

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

v
(@,AND CANNABIS BUYERS'

COOPERATIVE, and JEFFREY JONES,

Defendants.

C-98-0088

Case No.

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY
RELIEF, AND PRELIMINARY AND
PERMANENT INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

[. INTRODUCTION

1. The United States of America, by its undersigned attorneys, brings this action under the

Controlled Substances Act (hereinafter "the Act"), 21 U.S.C. § 801, et seq., for declaratory relief,

and preliminary and permanent injunctive relief, arising out of defendants Oakland Cannabis

Buyers' Cooperative’s and Jeffrey Jones’s ongoing manufacture and distribution of marijuana, a

Schedule I controlled substance, and possession of marijuana with the intent to manufacture and

distribute the substance, in violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1); defendants Oakland Cannabis

Buyers' Cooperative's and Jeffrey Jones's ongoing use of the premises of 1755 Broadway Avenue,

Complaint for Declaratory Relief, and Preliminary
and Permanent Injunctive Relief
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Oakland, California, for the purpose of manufacturing and distributing marijuana, in violation of
21 U.S.C. § 856(a)(1); and defendant Jeffrey Jones's ongoing conspiracy to violate the Act, in
violation of 21 U.S.C. § 846.

[1. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. This action arises under section 512(a) of the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 882(a), which authorizes
injunctive relief; and 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201 and 2202, which authorizes declaratory relief.
Jurisdiction is conferred on this Court pursuant to section 512(a) of the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 882(a);
and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1345 and 1355(a). Venue lies in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §
1391(b).

1. PARTIES

3. The plaintiff is the UNITED STATES OF AMERICA.

4. Defendant, OAKLAND CANNABIS BUYERS' COOPERATIVE (“OCBC"), is an
organization or unincorporated association operating as a business, and is located at 1755
Broadway Avenue, Oakland, California.

5. Defendant, JEFFREY JONES, is a resident of the State of California, is the operator
and/or director of the OCBC, and is named in his individual capacity and as the operator and/or

director of the OCBC.

IV. STATUTORY AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

6. In 1970, Congress passed the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 801, et seq., as part of the
Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act of 1970, Pub. L. No. 91-513, 84 Stat.
1236.

7. Pursuant to section 501(a) of the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 871(a), the functions vested in the
Attomey General under the Act have been assigned to the Administrator of the Drug Enforcement
Administration ("DEA"). See 28 C.F.R. § 0.100(b).

8. In section 101 of the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 801, Congress found and declared, in pertinent

part, that:

Complaint for Declaratory Relief, and Preliminary
and Permanent Injunctive Relief -2-
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(2) The illegal importation, manufacture, distribution, and possession and improper use
of controlled substances have a substantial and detrimental effect of the health and general
welfare of the American people.

(3) A major portion of the traffic in controlled substances flows through interstate and
foreign commerce. Incidents of the traffic or foreign flow, such as manufacture, local
distribution, and possession, nonetheless have a substantial and direct effect upon
interstate commerce because--

(A) after manufacture, many controlled substances are transported in interstate
commerce,

(B) controlled substances distributed locally usually have been transported in
interstate commerce immediately before their distribution, and

(C) controlled substances possessed commonly flow through interstate
commerce immediately prior to such possession.

(4) Local distribution and possession of controlled substances contribute to swelling the
interstate traffic in such substances.

(5) Controlled substances manufactured and distributed intrastate cannot be
diffcrentiated from controlled substances manufactured and distributed interstate. Thus, it
is not feasible to distinguish, in terms of controls, between controlled substances

manufactured and distributed interstate and controlled substances manufactured and
distributed intrastate.

(6) Federal control of the intrastate incidents of the traffic in controlled substances is
essential to the effective control of the interstate incidents of such traffic.

9. Section 102(6) of the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 802(6), defines a controlled substance as "a drug
or other substance, or immediate precursor, included in schedule I, II, I1I, IV, or V of part B of
this subchapter.”

10. Section 202(b) of the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 812(b), provides that the find ngs required for a
drug or other substance to be placed in Schedule I are as follows:

(A) The drug or other substance has a high potential for abuse.

(B) The drug or other substance has no currently accepted medical use in
treatment in the United States.

(C) There is a lack of accepted safety for use of the drug or other substance
under medical supervision.

11. Section 202(c) of the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 812(c), further provides that "Schedules I, 11,

111, 1V, and V shall, unless and until amended pursuant to section 811 of this title, consist of the

Complaint for Declaratory Relief, and Preliminary
and Permanent Injunctive Relief -3-
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following drugs or other substances, by whatever official name, common or usual name, chemical

name, or brand name designated:

Schedule I

* ok k%

any material, compound, mixture, or preparation, which contains any of the
following hallucinogenic substances

'ERE.

(10) Marihuana

12 Section 401(a) of the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1), makes it unlawful, except as
otherwise authorized by the Act, for any person knowingly or intentionally "to manufacture,
distribute, or dispense, or possess with intent to manufacture, distribute, or dispense, a controlled
substance * * * * "

13. Section 102(15) of the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 802(15), defines “manufacture” as “the
production, preparation, propagation, compounding, or processing of a drug or other substance * *
**" 21 US.C. § 802(15). Section 102(22) of the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 802(22), defines “production”
as “the manufacturing, planting, cultivation, growing, or harvesting of a controlled substance.”

14. Section 416(a) of the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 856(a)(1), makes it unlawful, except as
otherwise authorized by the Act, to "knowingly open or maintain any place for the purpose of
manufacturing, distributing, or using any controlled substance."

15. Section 406 of the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 846, makes it unlawful for any person to conspire
to violate the Act.

16. Section 512(a) of the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 882(a), provides that "[t]he district courts of
the United States . . . shall have jurisdiction in proceedings in accordance with the Federal Rules

of Civil Procedure to enjoin violations of this title."

Complaint for Declaratory Relief, and Preliminary
and Permanent Injunctive Relicf -4-
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V. STATEMENT OF CLAIMS

17. Defendant OCBC is an organization or unincorporated association, operating as a
business, and is located at 1755 Broadway Avenue, in Oakland, California. Defendant Jeffrey
Jones is the operator and/or director of the OCBC.

18. At all times relevant to this action, or from sometime in early 1997 to the present,
defendants OCBC and Jeffrey Jones have been engaged in the sale or distribution of marijuana.

19. At all times relevant to this action, or from sometime in early 1997 to the present,
defendants OCBC and Jeffrey Jones have been engaged in the manufacture of marijuana.

20. Atall times relevant to this action, or from sometime in early 1997 to the present,
defendants OCBC and Jeffrey Jones have been engaged in the possession of marijuana with the
intent to manufacture and distribute the substance.

21. Atall times relevant to this action, or from sometime in early 1997 to the present,
defendants OCBC and Jeffrey Jones have maintained 1755 Broadway Avenue, Oakland,
California, for the purpose of manufacturing and distributing marijuana.

22. Atall times relevant to this action, or from sometime in early 1997 to the present,
defendant Jeffrey Jones has conspired with unknown officers, agents, employees, or suppliers of
the OCBC to violate the Act.

COUNT I

23. The United States hereby incorporates by reference paragraphs 1-22.

24. In violation of section 401(a) of the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1), defendants OCBC and
Jeffrey Jones have engaged in the manufacture and distribution of marijuana, a Schedule I
controlled substance, and have possessed marijuana with the intent to manufacture and distribute
the substance.

25. Defendants OCBC’s and Jeffey Jones’s manufacture and distribution of marijuana,

and possession of marijuana with the intent to manufacture and distribute the substance, is

Complaint for Declaratory Relicf, and Preliminary
and Permanent Injunctive Relief -5-
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ongoing and continuing and, based on information and belief; is likely to continue unless enjoined
by the Court.
COUNT II

26. The United States hereby incorporates by reference paragraphs 1-25.

27. In violation of section 416(a) of the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 856(a)(1), defendants OCBC and
Jeffrey Jones have maintained 1755 Broadway Avenue, Oakland, California, for the purpose of
manufacturing and distributing marijuana.

28. Defendants OCBC’s and Jeffrey Jones’s maintenance of 1755 Broadway Avenue,
Oakland, California, for the purpose of manufacturing and distributing marijuana, is ongoing and
continuing and, based on information and belief, is likely to continue unless enjoined by the

Court.

COUNTI]

29. The United States hereby incorporates by reference paragraphs 1-28.
30. In violation of section 406 of the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 846, defendant Jeffrey Jones has
conspired with unknown officers, agents, employees, or suppliers of the OCBC to violate the Act.
31. Defendant Jeffrey Jones's conspiracy to violate the Act is ongoing and continuing and,
based on information and belief, is likely to continue unless enjoined by the Court.
PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, plaintiff, the United States of America, prays that this Court enter

Judgment against defendants, Oakland Cannabis Buyers' Cooperative and Jeffrey Jones, as well as

defendants' "officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys, and upon those persons in active

concert or participation with [defendants] who receive actual notice of the order by personal
service or otherwise," Fed. R. Civ. P. 65(d), as follows:
(a) Declare that defendants OCBC and Jeffrey Jones are in violation of saction

401(a) of the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1), by engaging in the manufacture and distribution of

Complaint for Declaratory Relief, and Preliminary
and Permanent Injunctive Relief -6-
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marijuana, a Schedule I controlled substance, and possession of marijuana with the intent to
manufacture and distribute the substance.

(b) Declare that defendants OCBC and Jeffrey Jones are in violation of section
416(a) of the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 856(a)(1), by maintaining 1755 Broadway Avenue, Oakland,
California, for the purpose of manufacturing and distributing marijuana.

(¢) Declare that defendant Jeffrey Jones is in violation of section 406 of the Act,
21 U.S.C. § 846, by conspiring with unknown officers, agents, employees, or suppliers of the
OCBC to violate the Act.

(d) Enter a preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining defendants OCBC and
Jeffrey Jones, from hereafter manufacturing or distributing marijuana, a Schedule I controlled
substance, or possessing marijuana with the intent to manufacture or distribute the substance, in
violation of section 401(a) of the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1).

(e) Enter a preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining defendants OCBC and
Jeffrey Jones, from hereafter maintaining 1755 Broadway Avenue, Oakland, California, for the
purpose of manufacturing or distributing marijuana, in violation of section 416(a) of the Act, 21

U.S.C. § 856(a)(1).
(f) Enter a preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining defendant Jeffrey
Jones from hereafter conspiring to violate the Act.
(g) Grant such other relief as the Court may deem just and equitable, including
plaintiff's costs.
Respectfully submitted,

FRANK W. HUNGER
Assistant Attorney General

MICHAEL J. f AMAGU
United States Attgrney

Complaint for Declaratory Relief, and Preliminary
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Dated: January 9, 1998
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Deputy Assistant Attorney General
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Attorneys for Plaintiff
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
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NOTICE OF MOTION

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on February 20, 1998, at 9:00 a.m., in the United States
Courthouse at 450 Golden Gate Avenue, San Francisco, California, in the courtroom normally
occupied by the Hon. Charles A. Legge, plaintiff, the United States of America, will move this
Honorable Court for a preliminary and permanent injunction, as provided for by the Controlled
Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. § 801, et seq. (the “Act”), and for summary judgment, as provided for
by Fed. R. Civ. P. 56.

The injunction and judgment sought by the United States pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 882(a),
in which Congress expressly authorized suits for civil injunctive relief to “to enjoin violations of
[the Controlled Substances Act],” would enjoin defendants, the Oakland Cannabis Buyers’
Cooperative (“OCBC”), and Jeffrey Jones, the operator and/or director of the OCBC, from
continuing to engage in widespread violations of the Act, related to defendants OCBC’s and
Jones’s ongoing manufacture and distribution of marijuana, a Schedule I controlled substance. In
particular, the injunction and judgment would enjoin defendants OCBC and Jones from further
manufacturing or distributing marijuana, or possessing marijuana with the intent to manufacture
or distribute the substance, in violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1). The injunction and judgment
also would enjoin defendants OCBC and Jones from further maintaining 1755 Broadway Avenue,
Oakland, California, the building which houses the OCBC, for the purpose of manufacturing or
distributing marijuana, in violation of 21 U.S.C. § 856(a)(1). Finally, the injunction and judgment
would enjoin defendant Jones from further conspiring to violate the Act, as evidenced by the

foregoing activities, in violation of 21 U.S.C. § 846.
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PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Marijuana is a Schedule I controlled substance.! As such, federal law makes it unlawful to
manufacture,’ distribute, or possess marijuana, or possess the drug with the intent to manufacture
or distribute it, except as otherwise authorized by the Act. See 21 U.S.C. §§ 841(a)(1); 844.

Defendants are flouting these provisions of federal law. Since sometime in early 1997,
and continuing to the present, defendants OCBC and Jones have been cultivating and distributing
marijuana, and possessing marijuana with the intent to cultivate and distribute the drug, in open
defiance of federal law. Accordingly, pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 882(a), the United States moves for
preliminary and permanent injunctive relief to enjoin defendants from any further violations of the
Act.

Defendants cannot justify their conduct by relying upon Proposition 215, approved in
November 1996, which modified California law to decriminalize the possession and cultivation of
marijuana by patients and “caregivers” for purported medical purposes under state law. Just as
before the passage of Proposition 215, federal law continues to prohibit the manufacture,
distribution, and possession of marijuana, and every court to have considered the issue has upheld
Congress's Commerce Clause authority to prohibit these illegal activities. Given the supremacy
of federal over state law, Proposition 215 provides no defense to defendants’ continuing violations
of federal law.

The United States therefore is entitled to preliminary injunctive relief. Indeed, because the

factual and legal issues relevant to this action -- whether defendants OCBC and Jones are engaged

' See 21 U.S.C. § 812 Schedule I(c)(10).

? Congress defined “manufacture” as “the production, preparation, propagation, compounding,
or processing of a drug or other substance * * * *» 21 U.S.C. § 802(15). Congress defined
“production” as “the manufacturing, planting, cultivation, growing, or harvesting of a controlled
substance.” Id. § 802(22). For ease of reference, this memorandum refers to the "cultivation" of
marijuana.
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in the cultivation and distribution of marijuana, and related activities -- will not be in dispute,
there is no “genuine issue of material fact” to be determined by the Court. Under these
circumstances, the Court should consolidate the hearing on the government’s motion for a
preliminary injuncﬁon with the merits, and enter a permanent injunction and summary judgment
in favor of the United States.
STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND

In 1970, Congress passed the Controlled Substances Act as part of the Comprehensive
Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act of 1970, Pub. L. No. 91-513, 84 Stat. 1236. While
recognizing that many controlled substances "have a useful and legitimate medical purpose and
are necessary to maintain the health and general welfare of the American people,” 21 U.S.C. §
801(1), Congress found that "[t]he illegal importation, manufacture, distribution, and possession
and improper use of controlled substances have a substantial and detrimental effect of the health
and general welfare of the American people." Id. § 801(2).” In particular, Congress made the
following express findings:

(3) A major portion of the traffic in controlled substances flows through interstate and
foreign commerce. Incidents of the traffic which are not an integral part of the interstate
or foreign flow, such as manufacture, local distribution, and possession, nonetheless have

a substantial and direct effect upon interstate commerce because--

(A) after manufacture, many controlled substances are transported in interstate
commerce,

(B) controlled substances distributed locally usually have been transported in
interstate commerce immediately before their distribution, and

(C) controlled substances possessed commonly flow through interstate
commerce immediately prior to such possession.

(4) Local distribution and possession of controlled substances contribute to swelling the
interstate traffic in such substances.

3 Congress defined a controlled substance as "a drug or other substance, or immediate
precursor, included in schedule I, II, [T, IV, or V of part B of this subchapter." Id. § 802(6).
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(5) Controlled substances manufactured and distributed intrastate cannot be
differentiated from controlled substances manufactured and distributed interstate. Thus, it
is not feasible to distinguish, in terms of controls, between controlled substances
manufactured and distributed interstate and controlled substances manufactured and
distributed intrastate.

(6) Federal control of the intrastate incidents of the traffic in controlled substances is
essential to the effective control of the interstate incidents of such traffic.

Id. § 801(3)-(6).

Congress therefore established a comprehensive regulatory scheme in which controlled
substances are placed in one of five "Schedules" depending on their potential for abuse, the extent
to which they may lead to psychological or physical dependence, and whether they have a
currently accepted medical use in treatment in the United States. Id. § 812(b). Controlled
substances in "Schedule I" have been determined to have a "high potential for abuse,"” "no
currently accepted medical use in treatment in the United States,"” and a "lack of accepted safety
for use under medical supervision." Id. § 812(b)(1). Given these characteristics, Congress has
mandated that substances in Schedule I be subject to the most stringent regulation. In particular,
no physician may dispense any Schedule I controlled substance to any patient outside of a strictly
controlled research project registered with the DEA, and approved by the Secretai'y of Health and
Human Services, acting through the Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”™). Id. § 823(f).*
When it passed the Act in 1970, Congress placed marijuana in Schedule I, where it remains today.
Id. § 812 Schedule I(c)(10).

Congress recognized, however, that the schedules may sometimes need to be modified to

reflect changes in scientific knowledge and patterns of abuse of particular drugs. A controlled

* In contrast, controlled substances in Schedules II through V are subject to decreasing levels
of controls because they have been determined to have some currently accepted medical uses in
treatment in the United States. Id. §§ 812(b)(2)-(5). Nonetheless, given their potential for abuse,
the Act requires that all persons involved in the distribution of a substance in Schedules II
through V to be registered with the DEA and to keep records of all transfers of controlled
substances. Id. § 823.
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substance that has been placed in Schedule I (or any other schedule) therefore may be
rescheduled, or removed from the five schedules, in one of two ways. First, Congress itself may
add or delete drugs from, or transfer drugs between, the five schedules. Second, Congress
authorized the Attorney General to promulgate rules to add or delete drugs from, or transfer drugs
between, the five schedules, pursuant to the rulemaking procedures of the Administrative
Procedures Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552.° See 21 U.S.C. § 811(a). Such proceedings may be initiated by
the Attorney General, acting through the DEA Administrator: “(1) on his own motion, (2) at the
request of the Secretary [of Health and Human Services], or (3) at the petition of any interested
party.” Id. The implementing regulations to the Act thus allow "[a]ny interested person to submit
a petition” asking the DEA Administrator to initiate a rulemaking proceeding to reschedule a
controlled substance. 21 C.F.R. §§ 1308.44(b), (c).®

Several groups and individuals who believe that marijuana should be permissible for
therapeutic purposes have petitioned the Administrator to move marijuana from Schedule I (where
Congress placed it) to Schedule II. In 1992, the Administrator declined to reschedule marijuana,
finding that the record demonstrated that marijuana had "no currently accepted medical use in
treatment in the United States," and thus had to remain in Schedule I. 57 Fed. Reg. 10,499 (Mar.
26, 1992). This decision was upheld by a unanimous panel of the D.C. Circuit, which held that
the Administrator’s findings were “consistent with the view that only rigorous scientific proof can

satisfy the [Controlled Substances Act’s] ‘currently accepted medical use requirement.”” Alliance

° The Attorney General has delegated this authority to the Administrator of the DEA. See 28
C.FR. § 0.100(b).

8 For example, in 1986, the DEA Administrator rescheduled “Marinol,” or synthetic
dronabinol in sesame oil and encapsulated in soft gelatin capsules, a substance which is the
synthetic equivalent of the isomer of delta-9-tetrahydrocannabinol (“THC”), the principal
psychoactive substance in marijuana, from Schedule I to Schedule II. 51 Fed. Reg. 17,476 (May
13, 1986). Marinol currently is approved in treatment for nausea and anorexia associated with
cancer and AIDS patients.
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for Cannabis Therapeutics v. Drug Enforcement Admin., 15 F.3d 1131, 1137 (D.C. Cir. 1994).

The petitioners did not seek Supreme Court review.

To control the "problems related to drug abuse," H.R. Rep. No. 91-1444, pt. 1, at 3 (1970),
Congress made it unlawful, except as otherwise authorized by the Act, to "manufacture [or]
distribute" any controlled substance without an appropriate DEA registration, or to "possess with
the intent to manufacture [or] distribute" a controlled substance. 21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1).” For the
same reason, Congress made it unlawful, except as authorized by the Act, to possess a controlled
substance. Id. § 844.

In addition, Congress made it unlawful to "knowingly open or maintain any place for the
purpose of manufacturing, distributing, or using any controlled substance," id. § 856(a)(1), or to
"manage or control any building, room, or enclosure, either as an owner, lessee, agent, employee,
or mortgagee, and knowingly and intentionally rent, lease, or make available for use, with or
without compensation, the building, room, or enclosure for the purpose of unlawfully
manufacturing, storing, distributing, or using a controlled substance.” Id. § 856(a)(2). And, as
with all criminal prohibitions, Congress made it unlawful to conspire to violate the Act. Id. § 846.

Finally, Congress expressly authorized suits for civil injunctive relief to enjoin violations
of the Act. Id. § 882(a). In pertinent part, Congress provided that:

The district courts of the United States and all courts exercising general jurisdiction in

the territories and possessions of the United States shall have jurisdiction in proceedings in
accordance with the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure to enjoin violations of [the Act.].

7 For controlled substances in Schedule I, DEA may grant a registration to a practitioner to
conduct research with a Schedule I controlled substance only in a research project that has been
approved by the Secretary of Health and Human Services, acting through the FDA. 21 U.S.C.
§ 823(f). By contrast, for substances in Schedules II through V, DEA alone has the statutory
authority to grant registrations to practitioners who are authorized to prescribe, administer, or
dispense controlled substances. Id. § 823(f).
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STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Oakland Cannabis Buyers’ Cooperative is a corporation or unincorporated association
operating as a business, and is located at 1755 Broadway Avenue, in Oakland, California. Jeffrey
Jones is the operator and/or director of the OCBC. Since sometime in early 1997, and continuing
to the present, defendant Jones and other agents or employees of the OCBC have sold different
“brands” of marijuana to club “members” in 1755 Broadway Avenue, in Oakland, in clear
violation of federal law. Defendants OCBC and Jones also have engaged in the cultivation of
numerous marijuana plants.

Indeed, there can be no dispute that defendants OCBC and Jeffrey Jones are engaged in
these unlawful activities. To begin with, the organization candidly identifies itself as the
"Qakland Cannabis Buyers’ Cooperative," and the OCBC’s World Wide Web site provides that
the OCBC “provides medical cannabis and other services to over 1,300 members.” Declaration of
Mark T. Quinlivan (“Quinlivan Dec.”) § 2 & Exhibit 1. The Web site also notes the hours for the
“Bud Bar,” id., and a pamphlet obtained at the OCBC states that the club provides members with
“[a] safe and secure location to purchase cannabis for medicinal use,” as well as “[o]ur Cannabis
Grow Center, offering the Medi-Grow System to cultivate your own medical marijuana * * * *.
Id. 1 3 & Exhibit 2.}

An undercover investigation conducted by the DEA also has revealed a substantial traffic
in the sale and distribution of marijuana by the OCBC. During this investigation, agents of the
DEA have made six undercover purchases of marijuana from the OCBC, observed somewhere
between 33-43 individuals purchasing marijuana at the OCBC, and observed approximately 100

growing marijuana plaints inside the OCBC. The undercover purchases are as follows:

¥ An OCBC newsletter likewise contains a column by defendant Jones, where he states that
the club sells “high-grade” marijuana for $50-$60 for one-eighth ounce, and that the club was
“restocked” with “B-Mex” and “House Special” marijuana. Id. § 4 & Exhibit 3.
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STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Oakland Cannabis Buyers’ Cooperative is a corporation or unincorporated association
operating as a business, and is located at 1755 Broadway Avenue, in Oakland, California. Jeffrey
Jones is the operatér and/or director of the OCBC. Since sometime in early 1997, and continuing
to the present, defendant Jones and other agents or employees of the OCBC have sold different
“brands” of marijuana to club “members” in 1755 Broadway Avenue, in Qakland, in clear
violation of federal law. Defendants OCBC and Jones also have engaged in the cultivation of
numerous marijuana plants.

Indeed, there can be no dispute that defendants OCBC and Jeffrey Jones are engaged in
these unlawful activities. To begin with, the organization candidly identifies itself as the
"Qakland Cannabis Buyers’ Cooperative,” and the OCBC’s World Wide Web site provides that
the OCBC “provides medical cannabis and other services to over 1,300 members.” Declaration of
Mark T. Quinlivan (“Quinlivan Dec.”) 2 & Exhibit 1. The Web site also notes the hours for the
“Bud Bar,” id., and a pamphlet obtained at the OCBC states that the club provides members with
“[a] safe and secure location to purchase cannabis for medicinal use,” as well as “[oJur Cannabis
Grow Center, offering the Medi-Grow System to cultivate your own medical marijuana * * * *.”
Id. § 3 & Exhibit 2.}

An undercover investigation conducted by the DEA also has revealed a substantial traffic
in the sale and distribution of marijuana by the OCBC. During this investigation, agents of the
DEA have made six undercover purchases of marijuana from the OCBC, observed somewhere
between 33-43 individuals puréhasing marijuana at the OCBC, and observed approximately 100

growing marijuana plaints inside the OCBC. The undercover purchases are as follows:

¥ An OCBC newsletter likewise contains a column by defendant Jones, where he states that
the club sells “high-grade” marijuana for $50-$60 for one-eighth ounce, and that the club was
“restocked” with “B-Mex” and “House Special” marijuana. Id. {4 & Exhibit 3.

Plaintiff’s Motion and Memorandum in Support of Motion for
Preliminary and Permanent Injunction, and for Summary Judgment
Case No. C98-0088 CAL -7-

ERBB17



10
1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

(1) On May 19, 1997, Special Agent (“S/A”") Brian Nehring made an undercover purchase
of one-sixteenth ounce of “Northern Lights” marijuana from the OCBC for $40. Declaration of
Special Agent Brian Nehring ("Nehring Dec.”) ] 4-15; Declaration of Special Agent Mark
Nelson q 4; Declaration of Phyllis E. Quinn ("Quinn Dec.") 4. In addition, while inside the
OCBC, S/A Nehring observed three other individuals purchasing marijuana at the OCBC, and
two growing marijuana plants. Id. q 10.

(2) On June 23, 1997, S/A Bill Nyfeler made an undercover purchase of one-eighth ounce
of Mexican-grown marijuana from the OCBC for $7. Declaration of Special Agent Bill Nyfeler
("Nyfeler Dec.") 99 4-14; Quinn Dec. § 5. In addition, while inside the OCBC, S/A Nyfeler
observed five other customers purchasing marijuana from the club, and approximately fifty
growing marijuana plants. Id. § 8.

(3) On August 8, 1997, S/A Carolyn Porras purchased one-eighth ounce of “Mexican AA-
Grade A” marijuana from the OCBC for $25. Declaration of Special Agent Carolyn Porras
("Porras Dec.") 4-16; Quinn Dec. § 6. In addition, while inside the OCBC, S/A Porras observed
approximately 9-15 other individuals standing in line to purchase marijuana, and observed
approximately fifteen growing marijuana plants. Id. § 10, 11, 13.

(4) On September 10, 1997, S/A Nyfeler purchased one-eighth ounce of “AA” Mexican-
grown marijuana from the OCBC for $15. Nyfeler Dec. § 15-24; Quinn Dec. § 7. In addition,
while inside the OCBC, S/A Nyfeler observed approximately 8-10 other individuals standing in
line to purchase marijuana, and observed approximately ten growing marijuana plants. Id.
19=20.

(5) On October 22, 1997, Special Agent Deborah Muusers made an undercover purchase
of one-eighth ounce of "That’s Purdy” marijuana from the OCBC for $60. Declaration of Special
Agent Deborah Muusers ("Muusers Dec.") §{ 4-16; Porras Dec. Y 17-19; Quinn Dec. § 8. In
addition, while inside the OCBC, S/A Muusers observed approximately 8-10 other individuals
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standing in line to purchase marijuana, and observed approximately 25-30 growing marijuana
plants. Id. ] 10.

(6) On November 14, 1997, S/A Nyfeler made an undercover purchase of one-eighth
ounce of “House Special" marijuana from the OCBC for $45. Nyfeler Dec. Y 25-33; Quinn Dec.
99. In addition, while inside the OCBC, S/A Nyfeler observed that the OCBC also was selling
“Hash Oi1l.” Id. § 29.

In summary, agents of the DEA made six undercover purchases of marijuana from the
OCBC between May 21, 1997 and November 14, 1997, and observed somewhere between 33-43
other individuals purchasing marijuana at the OCBC. Each individual such sale of marijuana by
defendants constitutes a separate violation of the federal law. The agents also observed
approximately 100 growing marijuana plaints inside the OCBC. During these undercover
purchases, the agents did not observe any other commercial activity ongoing at the OCBC except
for the cultivation and distribution of marijuana. Nehring Dec. § 15; Nyfeler Dec. | 14, 24, 33;
Porras Dec. § 16; Muusers Dec. § 16.

This factual record unambiguously demonstrates that defendants OCBC and Jones, and
other unknown officers, agents, employees, and/or suppliers of the OCBC, are engaged in the
cultivation and distribution of marijuana, the possession of the marijuana with the intent to
cultivate and distribute the drug, and related unlawful activities.

ARGUMENT

L. THE UNITED STATES IS ENTITLED TO A PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION TO
ENJOIN DEFENDANTS' ONGOING VIOLATIONS OF FEDERAL LAW

A.  Standards
In determining whether to grant a preliminary injunction, courts in the Ninth Circuit
traditionally consider "(1) the likelihood of the moving party's success on the merits; (2) the

possibility of irreparable injury to the moving party if the relief is not granted; (3) the extent to
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which the balance of hardships favors the respective parties; and (4) in certain cases, whether the
public interest will be advanced by granting the preliminary relief." Miller v. California Pacifi
Medical Center, 19 F.3d 449, 456 (9th Cir. 1994) (en banc). The moving party must demonstrate
either "(1) a combination of probable success on the merits and the possibility of irreparable harm,
or (2) the existence of serious questions going to the merits, the balance of hardships tipping
sharply in its favor, and at least a fair chance of success on the merits." Id. (internal quotation
omitted).

The injunction in this case is sought pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 882(a), in which Congress
expressly authorized suits for civil injunctive relief to “to enjoin violations of [the Controlled
Substances Act]." In statutory enforcement actions, the Ninth Circuit has held that, "[t]he
function of a court in deciding whether to issue an injunction authorized by a statute of the United
States to enforce and implement Congressional policy is a different one from that of a court when
weighing the claims of two private litigants.” United States v. Odessa Union Warehouse Co-op,
833 F.2d 172, 174-75 (9th Cir. 1987). In such cases, the Ninth Circuit has explained that:

Where an injunction is authorized by statute, and the statutory conditions are satisfied

* * % the agency to whom the enforcement of the right has been entrusted is not required
to show irreparable injury. No specific or immediate showing of the precise way in which
violation of the law will result in public harm is required. The district court accordingly
should presume that the government would suffer irreparable injury from a denial of its
motion.

Id. at 175-76 (emphasis supplied) (internal footnote and citations omitted). See also Miller, 19
F.3d at 459 ("In statutory enforcement cases where the government has met the 'probability of
success' prong of the preliminary injunction test, we presume it has met the 'possibility of
irreparable injury' prong * * * *" (quoting United States v. Nutri-Cology, Inc., 982 F.2d 394, 398
(9th Cir. 1992)); Navel Orange Admin. Comm. v. Exeter Orange Co., 722 F.2d 449, 453 (th Cir.

1983) ("When the government is seeking compliance pursuant to a statutory enforcement scheme,

irreparable injury from a denial of enforcement is presumed."); Trailer Train Co. v. State Bd.
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Equalization, 697 F.2d 860, 869 (9th Cir. 1983) ("The standard requirements for equitable relief
need not be satisfied when an injunction is sought to prevent the violation of a statute which

specifically provides for equitable relief."); United States v. Alameda Gateway, Inc., 953 F. Supp.

1106, 1109 (N.D. Cal. 1996) ("In statutory enforcement actions * * * [tlhe court only inquires as
to the possibility of irreparable harm when the government fails to establish a likelihood of
success on the merits."). In other words, "the passage of the statute is itself an implied finding by
Congress that violations will harm the public * * * [and] further inquiry into irreparable injury is
unnecessary." Nutri-Cology, Inc., 982 F.2d at 398 (emphasis supplied).

As we demonstrate below, the United States has more than demonstrated "a combination
of probable success on the merits and the possibility of irreparable harm" in this action, and

therefore easily meets its burden of justifying the issuance of preliminary injunctive relief.

B. The United States Has Demonstrated a Likelihood of Success on the Merits, as

Defendants are Engaged in Plain and Ongoing Violations of Federal Law

There is no question in this case that defendants OCBC and Jeffrey Jones are engaged in
the open cultivation and distribution of marijuana, and are possessing marijuana with the intent to
cultivate and distribute the drug. As detailed above, the OCBC's own Web Site and literature
provides that the club is engaged in growing and selling the drug, see Quinlivan Dec. {1 2-4 &
Exhibits 1-3, and DEA undercover agents have made six undercover purchases of marijuana from
the OCBC, observed several other individuals purchasing marijuana from the OCBC during these
undercover purchases, as well as numerous growing marijuana plants on the premises of the
OCBC. See Nehring Dec. 9 4-15; Nyfeler Dec. {1 4-33; Porras Dec. Y 4-16; Muusers Dec.
4-16; Quinn Dec. ] 4-9. This factual record is incontrovertible, and we do not anticipate that
defendants OCBC and Jones will deny that they are engaged in these activities.

This activity, alone, is sufficient to demonstrate that the United States will succeed on the

merits of this action. Because marijuana is listed in Schedule I of the Controlled Substances Act,
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it cannot lawfully be cultivated, distributed, possessed, or possessed with the intent to cultivate or
distribute the substance, for any purpose outside of a research project registered with the DEA and
approved by the Secretary of Health and Human Services, acting through the FDA. See 21 U.S.C.
§§ 841(a)(1); 823(f).® Neither defendants OCBC nor Jones has been registered with the DEA to
handle marijuana for any purpose.

Nor can there be any doubt that Congress has the constitutional authority to prohibit the
cultivation, distribution, or possession of marijuana. When it passed the Act, Congress made
specific findings that the traffic in controlled substances is of paramount national concern,
including that: "[a] major portion of the traffic in controlled substances flows through interstate
and foreign commerce;" that the "[1]ocal distribution and possession of controlled substances
contribute to swelling the interstate traffic in such substances;" that "[c]ontrolled substances
manufactured and distributed intrastate cannot be differentiated from controlled substances
manufactured and distributed interstate;" and that "[f]ederal control of the intrastate incidents of

the traffic in controlled substances is essential to the effective control of the interstate incidents of

9 Defendants cannot challenge Congress’s placement of marijuana in Schedule I in this case.
Every court of appeals to have considered the issue has held that the decision as to whether or not
marijuana should be reclassified must be presented first to the Administrator of the DEA in the
context of a rescheduling petition under 21 U.S.C. § 811(a). See, ¢.8., United States v. Burton,
894 F.2d 188, 192 (6% Cir. 1990); cert. denied, 498 U.S. 857 (1990); United States v. Greene,
892 F.2d 453, 455-45 (6™ Cir. 1989); United States v. Fry, 787 F.2d 903, 905 (4" Cir.), cert.
denied, 479 U.S. 861 (1986); United States v. Wables, 731 F.2d 440, 450 (7th Cir. 1984); United
States v. Fogarty, 692 F.2d 542, 548 & n.4 (8" Cir. 1982); United States v. Middleton, 690 F.2d
820, 823 (11* Cir. 1982), cert. denied, 460 U.S. 1051 (1983); United States v. Kiffer, 477 F.2d
349, 356-57 (2d Cir. 1972), gert. denied, 414 U.S. 831 (1973). As the Sixth Circuit held in
Greene, a section 811 petition, “and not the judiciary, is the appropriate means by which
defendant should challenge Congress’s classification of marijuana as a Schedule I drug.” 892
F.2d at 456.
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such traffic." 21 U.S.C. §§ 801(3)-(6)."° Based on these express congressional findings, the Ninth
Circuit has uniformly rejected Commerce Clause challenges to the Act. See, e.g., United States v.

Bramble, 103 F.3d 1475, 1479-80 (9th Cir. 1996) ("The district court correctly held that the

Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. § 841(a), 844(a), is constitutional under the Commerce

Clause. We have so held." (internal citations omitted)); United States v. Tisor, 96 F.3d 370, 373-

75 (9th Cir. 1996) ("In adopting the Controlled Substances Act, Congress expressly found that
intrastate drug trafficking has a 'substantial effect; on interstate commerce."); United States v.
Kim, 94 F.3d 1247, 1249-50 (9th Cir. 1996) (rejecting Commerce Clause challenge to Act
premised on United States v. Lopez, 115 S. Ct. 1624 (1995)); United States v. Staples, 85 F.3d
461, 463 (9th Cir. 1996) ("Unlike education, drug trafficking is a commercial activity which
substantially affects interstate commerce."); United States v. Visman, 919 F.2d 1390, 1393 (9th
Cir. 1990) ("Congress may constitutionally regulate intrastate criminal cultivation of marijuana
plants found rooted in the soil."), cert. denied, 502 U.S. 969, 112 S. Ct. 442 (1991).

And the Ninth Circuit is not alone in this judgment. Every other court of appeals to
consider the issue is in agreement. See, ¢.g,, United States v. Edwards, 98 F.3d 1364, 1369 (D.C.
Cir. 1996); United States v. Lerebours, 87 F.3d 582, 584-85 (1st Cir. 1996); Proyect v. United
States, 101 F.3d 11, 13-14 (2d Cir. 1996); United States v. Leshuk, 65 F.3d 1105, 1112 (4th Cir.

1995); United States v. Clark, 67 F.3d 1154 (5th Cir. 1995), cert. denied, 116 S. Ct. 1432 (1996);
United States v. Tucker, 90 F.3d 1135, 1139-41 (6th Cir. 1996); United States v. Rogers, 89 F.3d
1326, 1338 (7th Cir. 1996); United States v. Bell, 90 F.3d 318, 321 (8th Cir. 1996); United States

1 Congress further found that "[a] major portion of the traffic in controlled substances flows
through interstate and foreign commerce," and that "[i]ncidents of the traffic or foreign flow,
such as manufacture, local distribution, and possession, nonetheless have a substantial and direct
effect upon interstate commerce * * * *." 21 U.S.C. § 801(3). It is undisputed here that, among
the types of marijuana sold by the OCBC is what the OCBC purports to be Mexican-grown
marijuana. See Nyfeler Dec. ] 4, 16 (purchases of one-eighth ounce of Mexican-grown
marijuana); Porras § 4 (same).

Plaintiff’s Motion and Memorandum in Support of Motion for
Preliminary and Permanent Injunction, and for Summary Judgment
Case No. C98-0088 CAL -13-
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v. Wacker, 72 F.3d 1453, 1475 (10th Cir. 1995), cert. denied, 117 S. Ct. 136 (1996); United States

v. Jackson, 111 F.3d 101, 102 (11th Cir. 1997).

Accordingly, because the factual record unequivocally demonstrates that defendants
OCBC and Jones are engaged in the cultivation and distribution of marijuana, and the possession
of marijuana with the intent to cultivate and distribute the drug, the United States has established
that it is likely to succeed on the merits of its claim that these activities are in violation of 21
U.S.C. § 841(a)(1). This factual record further demonstrates that defendants OCBC and Jones are
using the premises of 1755 Broadway Avenue, in Oakland, to engage in the cultivation and
distribution of marijuana, which constitutes an unambiguous violation of 21 U.S.C. § 856(a)(1),
which makes it illegal, unless otherwise authorized by the Act, to “knowingly open or maintain
any place for the purpose of manufacturing, distributing, or using any controlled substance.”
Finally, the presence of other individual employees or attendants at the OCBC while the
undercover purchases of marijuana were made demonstrates that defendant Jones is unlawfully
conspiring with these unknown officers, agents, employees, and/or suppliers of the Marin

Alliance, in violation of 21 U.S.C. § 846.

C. Irreparable Injury Must Be Presumed Because an Injunction is Authorized by the
Controlled Substances Act, and the Statutory Violation is Plain

Congress has specifically authorized suits for civil injunctive relief to enjoin violations of
the Controlled Substances Act. See 21 U.S.C. § 882(a). Hence, as discussed supra Part LA,
because defendants’ violation of the Act are clear and unambiguous, irreparable injury must be
presumed. As the Ninth Circuit has held: "In statutory enforcement actions * * * the passage of
the statute is itself an implied finding by Congress that violations will harm the public * * * [and]
further inquiry into irreparable injury is unnecessary." Nutri-Cology. Inc., 982 F.2d at 398
(emphasis supplied). Accord Miller, 19 F.3d at 459; Qdessa Union Warehouse Co-op, 833 F.2d

Plaintiff's Motion and Memorandum in Support of Motion for
Preliminary and Permanent Injunction, and for Summary Judgment
Case No. C98-0088 CAL -14-
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at 174-75; Navel Orange Admin. Comm., 722 F.2d at 453; Trailer Train Co., 697 F.2d at 869;
Alameda Gateway, Inc., 953 F. Supp. at 1109.
This principle was most fully explained by the Ninth Circuit in Qdessa Union Warehouse.
In that case, which involved an injunction sought pursuant to the food contamination and
adulteration standards of the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, 21 U.S.C. § 301, et seq., the court
stated that:
The function of a court in deciding whether to issue an injunction authorized by a statute
of the United States to enforce and implement Congressional policy is a different one from
that of the court when weighing claims by two private litigants. * * * * Once Congress,

exercising its delegated powers, has decided the order of priorities in a given area, it is for
the courts to enforce them when asked.

* %k ok %k

The principles that apply to requests for preliminary injunctions in this circuit are well-
established. So is the presumption of irreparable harm arising from the failure to enforce a
federal statute intended to protect the public.
833 F.2d at 174-75, 177 (emphasis supplied). In then applying this standard, the court held that:
“Had the district court applied the correct standard, the government’s likelihood of success on the
merits and the presumptive finding of irreparable injury would have met the first test for issuance

of a preliminary injunction.” Id. (citing Benda v. Gr. o) the Int’l Ass’n of Machinist
Aerospace Workers, 584 F.2d 308, 314 (9* Cir. 1978), cert. dismissed, 441 U.S. 937 (1979)).

Similarly here, because the government has demonstrated that defendants OCBC’s and
Jones’s ongoing cultivation and distribution of marijuana, possession of the drug with the intent to
cultivate and distribute it, and related activities, constitute plain and unambiguous violations of
federal law, and because irreparable injury must be presumed under these circumstances, the
United States has more than demonstrated “a combination of probable success on the merits and
the possibility of irreparable harm,” the first test for the issuance of a preliminary injunction.

Miller, 19 F.3d at 456. No further inquiry is necessary.

Plaintiff’s Motion and Memorandum in Support of Motion for
Preliminary and Permanent Injunction, and for Summary Judgment
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Even were the Court to examine the remaining factors governing the issuance or injunctive
relief, the result would be the same. In addition to the presumption of irreparable injury
applicable in statutory enforcement actions, "[h]arm to the public interest is presumed." Federal
Trade Comm'n v. World Wide Factors, Inc., 882 F.2d 344, 346 (9th Cir. 1989) (citing Qdessa
Union Warehouse, 833 F.2d at 175-76). Indeed, in passing the Act, Congress expressly found
that "[t]he illegal importation, manufacture, distribution, and possession and improper use of
controlled substances have a substantial and detrimental effect of the health and general welfare of
the American people.” 21 U.S.C. § 801(2). As such, the very passage of the Act is, in itself, an
expression of the public interest by the Branches of government entrusted by the Constitution
with the responsibility to make such decisions. See Able v. United States, 44 F.3d 128, 132 (2d
Cir. 1995) (per curiam) (holding that "it would be inappropriate for this court to substitute its own
determination of the public interest for that arrived at by the politica! branches" where Congress
had made specific findings in a statute which Congress believed justified a policy). The public
interest therefore weighs in favor of the requested injunction.

And this determination necessarily dovetails with a determination that the balance of
hardships weighs in favor of the requested injunction. In ibean Marine Services Co. v.
Baldridge, 844 F.2d 668 (9th Cir. 1988), the Ninth Circuit made clear that: "[T]he district court
must consider the public interest as a factor in balancing the hardships when the public interest
may be affected.” Id. at 674. Here, again, because defendants are in open violation of Congress's
statutory scheme, "[h]arm to the public interest is presumed.”" World Wide Factors, Inc., 882 F.2d
at 346.

Moreover, to the extent defendants believe they are subject to a hardship as a result of
Congress's placement of marijuana in Schedule I, they are entitled to petition the Administrator of
the DEA to reschedule marijuana. As described above, Congress has established an

administrative process to determine whether a controlled substance should be rescheduled so that

Plaintiff’s Motion and Memorandum in Support of Motion for
Preliminary and Permanent Injunction, and for Summary Judgment
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it may be used for medical purposes. Among other things, the implementing regulations to the
Act allow any "[a]ny interested person to submit a petition" asking the DEA Administrator to
initiate a rulemaking proceeding to reschedule a controlled substance. 21 C.F.R. §§ 1308.44(b),
(c)."* In thereby ensuring that drugs may be used for medical purposes only after they have been
proven safe, effective, and reliable through a rigorous system of research and testing, this federal
drug approval process has protected the American public from dangerous drugs and unproven
treatments for more than 50 years.!?

Thus, while the Administrator has previously declined to reschedule marijuana -- a
decision that was upheld by a unanimous panel of the D.C. Circuit, see Alliance for Cannabis
Therapeutics, 15 F.3d at 1131-37 -- if defendants believe that new evidence exists, they can
petition the DEA to conduct another rulemaking. But defendants cannot, of course, litigate that
issue in this case. See supra note 9. See also United States v. LaFroscia, 354 F. Supp. 1338,
1341 (S.D.N.Y. 1973) ("[I]f the defendant were to be permitted to seek court review of the
placement of marihuana in Schedule I without first applying to the Attorney General for such
relief under 21 U.S.C. § 811, Congress' statutory scheme would be thwarted.").

By contrast, defendants OCBC’s and Jones’s ongoing violations of the Controlled
Substances Act constitute a direct affront to the laws passed by Congress. Accordingly, the

balance of hardships also weighs in favor of the requested injunction. See Odessa Union

"' As set forth supra, the DEA Administrator also may conduct a rulemaking on his own
motion, or upon the request of the Secretary [of Health and Human Services]. Id. § 811(a).

2 Even if marijuana were taken out of Schedule I and placed in Schedule I, it could not
legally be marketed or made available for prescription use unless it were reviewed and approved
by the FDA under the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, 21 U.S.C. § 301, et seq. Foradrugto
obtain approval under this Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, appropriate tests in well-controlled
studies must be conducted to show substantial evidence that the drug is effective for its intended
use and that it is safe. To date, marijuana has not been approved by the FDA to treat any disease
or condition.

Plaintiff’s Motion and Memorandum in Support of Motion for
Preliminary and Permanent Injunction, and for Summary Judgment
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ERBOO27



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Warehouse, 833 F.2d at 175 (“Once Congress has decided the order of priorities in a given area, it

is for the courts to enforce them when asked.”).

IL. BECAUSE DEFENDANTS' VIOLATIONS OF FEDERAL LAW ARE PLAIN AND
UNAMBIGUOUS, THE UNITED STATES IS ENTITLED TO SUMMARY
JUDGMENT AND PERMANENT INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
Summary judgment is appropriate where "there is no genuine issue of material fact and . . .

the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law.” Fed. R. Civ. P. 56(c)."” In cases in

which the factual record available to a court at the preliminary injunction stage is unequivocal, the

Court may “convert a decision on a preliminary injunction into a final disposition on the merits by

granting summary judgment on the basis of the factual record available at the preliminary

injunction stage." Air Line Pilots Ass’n v. Alaska Airlines, Inc., 898 F.2d 1393, 1397 n.4 (9th

Cir. 1990).

This is such a case. As we have demonstrated supra Part I.B., the factual record in this
case irrefutably demonstrates that defendants OCBC and Jones are engaged in the unlawful
cultivation and distribution of marijuana, and related activities, and these actions constitute clear
and unambiguous violations of federal law. Hence, "there is no genuine issue of material fact” in

this case to be resolved. See Fed. R. Civ. P. 56(c). Under these circumstances, the United States

is entitled permanent injunctive relief, and judgment as a matter of law.

13 The initial burden is on the moving party to point out the absence of any genuine issue of
material fact. Celotex Corp. v. Catrett, 477 U.S. 317, 323 (1986). Once the initial burden of the
moving party is satisfied, the burden shifts to the opponent to demonstrate through the
production of probative evidence that there remains an issue of fact to be tried. Anderson v.
Liberty Lobby, Inc., 477 U.S. 242, 250 (1986). In order to meet this burden, the non-moving
party must go beyond the pleadings and show "by her own affidavits, or by the 'depositions,
answers to interrogatories, or admissions on file" that a genuine issue of material fact exists.
Celotex Corp., 477 U.S. at 323 (quoting Fed. R. Civ P. 56(¢)).

Plaintiff’s Motion and Memorandum in Support of Motion for
Preliminary and Permanent Injunction, and for Summary Judgment
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FEDERAL LAW IS UNAFFECTED BY PROPOSITION 215 .
1a

Proposition 215, enacted in November 1996,'* which decriminalized the possession and

ltivation of marijuana for patients and "caregivers" for purported medical purposes under state

w, provides no defense to defendants’ unlawful activities under federal law. Itis well .
s

tablished that the determination of whether the Controlled Substances Act has been violated is

\ federal issue to be determined in federal courts," and is not dependent on state law. United n

\ates v. Rosenberg, 513 F.2d 190, 198 (9th Cir.), cert. denied, 423 U.S. 1031 (1975). Thus, in

‘nited States v. Kim, the Ninth Circuit expressly rejected an argument that the Act is an

npermissible intrusion "into an area traditionally regulated by the states." In no uncertain terms,

nder the Commerce Clause to criminalize the

V]

ie court held that "Congress had authority u

onduct under § 841(a)(1)," and that "the Supreme Court has recognized Congress' power to

egulate illegal drugs." 94 F.3d at 1250 n.4. Indeed, to the extent "a state law purported to as

:liminate" a duty imposed by the federal Controlled Substances Act, "it would be void under the

Supremacy Clause." United States v. Leal, 75 F.3d 219, 227 (6th Cir. 1996). See also United v.
Curtis, 965 F.2d 610, 616 (8th Cir. 1992) ("It is a basic principle of constitutional law that, under

the Supremacy Clause of Article VI of the Constitution, federal law supersedes state law where

there is an outright conflict between such laws.").

In any event, we note that, on December 12, 1997, the California Court of Appeal ruled

that the ongoing distribution of marijuana by the Cannabis Buyer's Club (now known as the

Cannabis Cultivators Club), a marijuana distribution center like the Marin Alliance, continues to

be unlawful under state law, even after the passage of Proposition 215. People v. Peron, ---

Cal. Rptr.2d ---, 1997 WL 775828, at ** 3-10, No. A077630 (Cal. Ct. App.

Dec. 12, 1997). In particular, the California Court of Appeal held that "[t]he sale and possession

|
|
|

14 Gee Cal. Health & Safety Code § 11362.5.

Plaintiff’s Motion and Memorandum in Support of Motion for
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Oaklana Cannabis Buyers' Cooperative hitp: www.rxcbe.org

Mission Welcome to the OCBC. we are a California Consumer

Statement Cooperative Corporation, organized by members, for
medical-marijuana patients protected by Proposition 215. The

Services/ Oakland CBC operates on a not-for-profit basis with the assistance of
Calendar member volunteers. Currently we are providing medical cannabis
and other services to over 1,300 members.
Membership
_Rgl_a_teg_‘s_lti‘s_ggg Oakland Cannabis Buyers'
Organizations Cooperative
. P.O. Box 70401
Medical Oakland, CA 94612-0401
Marijuana Office (510) 832-5346
Fax (510) 986-0534
E-mail oche@rxcbe.org

Please See it our Way

Please remember the Oakland Cannabis Buyers Cooperative is a health
organization. Our services are for those who suffer from serious illnesses and
disabilities. Any other inquires for cannabis will be neither tolerated nor
appreciated.

We do not send, mail or ship cannabis.

This site provides information for patients who use cannabis with a doctor's
recommendation. This site exists because the voters of California have said yes to
providing cannabis for medical use. Please don't test the law by trying to establish
illegal transactions via this site.

These pages look best . . . when viewed through our software on our computer. If

they don't look so good on your system, you're probably not the only one. Please

let us know about any problems - we're committed to making our site accessible,
useful and fun.

Our immutable thanks to Chameleon Productions for this site's initial graphical
elements and HTML.

Last updated: Dec. 19, 1997

This URL: http://www.rxcbc.org/
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Oakiand Cannabis Buyers'Cooperative

Mission Statement

The goal of the Oakland Cannabis Buyers' Cooperative (OCBC) is to
provide seriously ill patients with a safe and reliable source of
medical cannabis. Our cooperative is open to all patients with a
verifiable letter of diagnosis who use cannabis to alleviate or
terminate the effects of their illnesses.

Federal statutes currently prohibit the use of cannabis as medicine.
However, scientific evidence, including anecdotal evidence,
documents the relief that cannabis provides to many seriously ill
patients. The cooperative is dedicated to reducing the harm these
patients encounter due to the prohibition of cannabis. This includes
alleviating the fear of arrest, as well as negating problems associated
with purchasing cannabis on the illicit market.

OCBC's headquarters is a multi-faceted facility, accessible to people
with disabilities. We provide a professional atmosphere for patients
to procure cannabis, with trained member advocates on hand to offer
advice and assistance. We also offer self-help services such as
support groups and massage therapy. In addition, OCBC provides
information on a variety of topics, including AIDS prevention and
treatment, safe sex, and cannabis reform in general. (See our
calendar.)

The Oakland CBC currently operates under the auspices of California
Proposition 215 and Oakland City Council Resolution No. 72516.
Resolution 72516, passed in March 1996, makes the enforcement of
medicinal-cannabis laws the lowest priority for the city of Oakland.
Furthermore, the city has appointed a working group to oversee
OCBC functions and to determine the most effective means to protect
and assist seriously ill patients.

Mission Statement | Services | Membershij
Related Sites | Medical Marijuana | E-mail
Home

—g
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Oakiond Cannabis Buyers'Cooperative

Services

~ Visa, MasterCard, Discover and ATM cards are
now at accepted at the Bud Bar!

~ Bud Bar hours: 11 am through 7 pm Mondays
and Fridays, 11 am until 1 pm Tuesdays through
Thursdays. Closed Saturdays, Sundays and
holidays. We are located in downtown Oakland, California -
members and others who need to know can call 832-5346 for our
street address. (A BART station is within one block and the OCBC
offices are completely accessible to people using wheelchairs.
However, please remember that no smoking is allowed on the
premises or in the immediate vicinity of the club.)

Calendar

Except as noted,
events listed below
take place at the cooperative.
~ Bowling Team, 4 pm Sunday, Dec. 21, at Mel's in Alameda.
= Cultivation Meeting, 5 pm Wednesday, Dec. 24.
=~ Merry Christmas! Closed on Thursday, Dec. 25.

= "Fruit Friday," 11 am-7 pm Dec. 26. Relax and enjoy a fresh
variety of delicious fruit.

- Bowling Team, 4 pm Sunday, Dec. 28, at Mel's in Alameda.
-~ Happy New Year! Closed Thursday, Jan. 1.
~ Members' Buffet, 1-4 pm Saturday, Jan. 3.

Mission Statement | Services | Membership

Related Sites | Medical Marijuana | E-mail
Home

This URL: http://www.rxcbc.org/services.html
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Oakiand Cannabis Buyers'Cooperative
Membership

Mission

Statement  Protocols
Services/ The Oakland Ca;mabis Buyer§' Cooperative operates pursuant to and
Calendar in accordance with the statewide mandate of Proposition 215 (Exhibit
= A) ar'ld.Resolunons passed unanimously by the Oakland City Council
Membership I)Exhlbltl B). Its operating procedures have been consolidated as these
rotocols.

Related Sites and

Organizations I. Admission and Membership Requirements

Medical A person seeking membership of the Oakland CBC must at the
, - threshold provide a note from a treating physician assenting to
Marijuana cannabis therapy for a medical condition listed on the Medicinal
E il Cannabis User Initial Questionnaire (Exhibit C). Upon acceptance of
L-man the note by intake staff, the prospective member will undergo an

extensive screening and such questioning as shall establish that the
candidate meets the Medical Admissions Criteria (Exhibit D),
including, without being limited to, the Cannabis Buyers'
Cooperative Information Form (Exhibit E). If, upon the screening by
staff members, the candidate does not appear to qualify, he or she will
be denied membership with a statement of reasons for his or her
being screened out. If the candidate appears to qualify for
membership, intake staff will give the candidate the Authorization for
Release of Patient Status form (Exhibit F) and the Physician
Statement (Exhibit G), with a request that the candidate's treating
physician sign it. When the form is returned, the intake staff will
verify the physician's approval by telephone. Patients must also
complete the Cannabis Patient Registry Program Survey (Exhibit H)
gathering past medical data.

No person under the age of eighteen shall be admitted to membership
without the written consent of parents, in addition to meeting all other
requirements.

IL. Responsibilities of Membership

All members must sign a Membership Agreement (Exhibit I),
whereupon they will receive a Membership Card (Exhibit J).
Members agree to conduct themselves discreetly, in accordance with
the Statement of Safe Use of Cannabis (Exhibit K) and the Principles
of Responsible Cannabis Use (Exhibit L).

III. Other Provisions

A. Purpose. The purpose of the Oakland CBC is to help provide
medicine for people who need it. Accordingly, it shall be operated as
a non-profit organization.

B. Privacy of members. The staff of the Cooperafive shall take steps

EROO66
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to protect the privacy and identity of members. However, neither the
Cooperative nor its staff shall be liable for any breach thereof

C. Changes. These Protocols, and all medical protocols, are subject
to change without notice from time to time in the sole discretion of
management.

D. Cooperative operation. a. No smoking of anything on premises.
b. Members shall observe additional house rules as same maybe

posted by management. c. Management may eject any person at any
time.

Exhibits

A. Proposition 215

B. Oakland City Council Resolutions

C. Medicinal Cannabis User Initial Questionnaire

D. Medical Admissions Criteria

E. Information Form

F. Authorization for Release of Patient Status

G. Physician Statement

H. Cannabis Patient Registry Program Survey

I. Membership Agreement

J. Membership Card

K. Statement of Safe Use of Cannabis

L. Principles of Responsible Cannabis Use

Mission Statement | Services | Membership
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